
TOWNSHIP OF INDIANA
PLANNING COMMISSION

NOVEMBER 18, 2015

A regular meeting of the Indiana Township Planning Commission was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by
Chairman Cecil Tranquill with the Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting was recorded on an audio
cassette.

The roll was called and Planning Commission members present were Thomas Ceponis,  David Geahry,
Pat Miller, and Cecil Tranquill.  Michael Rouggie did not attend. Also in attendance were Code
Enforcement Officer Jeffrey S. Curti and Recording Secretary Jacquelyn Rouggie.  A representative
from Nichols and Slagle Engineering did not attend. 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2015
Mr. Geahry made a motion, seconded by Mr. Ceponis, to approve the September 23,
2015, Regular Meeting Minutes as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS
RURAL RIDGE FIRE COMPANY PLAN OF LOTS - SIMPLE SUBDIVISION

Commission Members were presented with a subdivision consisting of consolidating two
parcels of land and a lot line revision, resulting in two lots.  Lot 1 will be 1.01 acres and owned
by the Rural Ridge Fire Company.  Lot 2 will be 0.5315 acres and owned by the Sneider’s, the
adjacent property owners. The site is located on Little Deer Creek Road, approximately 300
feet south of the intersection of Little Deer Creek Road and Barnhart Street.  The property is
zoned “VR” Village Residential. Jim Mundy, Vice President of the Rural Ridge Fire Company,
and Professional Land Surveyor Mark Schmidt from Hampton Technical Associates were
present.

Mr. Tranquill asked if the neighbors, the Sneider’s, were giving the Fire Company this piece of
their land. Mr. Mundy said they are; it is very wooded and of little use to the Sneider’s unless
they cut all the trees down.  Mr. Mundy said the Fire Company is in need of extra parking, so
they plan to acquire the piece of land, cut down all the trees, and add 40 - 50 parking spaces. 
Mr. Curti said everyone received a copy of Mr. Slagle’s review letter dated November 12, 2015. 
Mr. Curti said he had a conference call with Mr. Slagle and Mr. Schmidt had a conference call
regarding the outstanding items.  Based on this conference call, Mr. Schmidt prepared new
plans and submitted them, along with a letter dated November 17, 2015, addressing Mr.
Slagle’s concerns and comments.  Mr. Curti said this consolidation and lot line revision will
clean up the Fire Company’s property by combining their two existing lots into one.  Currently,
one parcel is tax exempt and the other is taxable.  This subdivision will make the entire parcel
tax exempt.  

Mr. Curti reviewed Mr. Slagle’s letter dated November 12, 2015.  He asked Mr. Schmidt if there
are any natural and/or artificial features not shown on the plan; Mr. Schmidt said there are not. 
The location of all existing/proposed easements are now shown on the new plan.  Mr. Schmidt
said the location of the FEMA floodplain area is now shown as well.  Mr. Curti said a seal and
signature of a engineer, surveyor, or other qualified person responsible for preparing the plan
needs provided.  Mr. Schmidt said when he submits the final plan, it will be signed and sealed. 
 Mr. Schmidt said the recording covenants have been revised to be in accordance with the
Allegheny County SALDO requirements.  Mr. Schmidt said the proposed survey monuments
will be iron pins and placed in each corner of the property.  The use and utility information are
now on the new plans, as is the note regarding environmental matters and stormwater issues.



Regular Meeting, November 18, 2015
Page 2

Mr. Curti continued with Mr. Slagle’s letter and said approval of the plan from the Allegheny
County Department of Economic Development is needed.  Mr. Curti said he forwarded to the
County a copy of the plan, as well as a copy of the Subdivision Application, on November 5,
2015.  He said the County has 30 days to review it and submit comments before the plan is
presented to the Board of Supervisors.  If no comment is made, the Board can deem the plan
approved.  

Mr. Curti asked if the two properties currently owned by the Sneider’s (Lot/block #957-F-319
and Lot/block #957-F-318) are going to be consolidated as part of this plan.  Mr. Curti said they
are not part of the plan that was submitted by the Fire Company.  Mr. Curti and Mr. Schmidt
said they felt this would be a beneficial time for the Sneider’s to combine their two parcels into
one by simply removing a lot line.

Mr. Tranquill asked if the Fire Company has any plans for doing anything with the building itself. 
Mr. Curti said they have already added 4 bays and did interior renovations.  Therefore, the
additional parking spaces being created are now needed.  Mr. Tranquill asked how many active
members show attend the Fire Company’s meetings; Mr. Mundy said usually only 5 to 10.  

Mr. Curti said with the revised plans submitted by Mr. Schmidt, all of the changes in Mr. Slagle’s
letter dated November 12, 2015 have now been addressed.        

   
Mr. Ceponis made a motion, seconded by Mr. Geahry, recommending approval of the
Rural Ridge Fire Company Plan of Lots - Simple Subdivision, provided the outstanding
items listed in the Township Engineer’s letter dated November 12, 2015, are
satisfactorily addressed. These items include:

1. Provide the seal and signature of the engineer, surveyor, or other qualified
professional responsible for preparing the plan.

2. Provide approval of the Subdivision Plan by the Allegheny County Department
of Economic Development.

Motion carried unanimously.

LETTER OF RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Each Commission Member received a copy of the Planning Commission’s Letter of
Recommendation sent to the Board of Supervisors, which was written as a result of the
Commission’s September 23, 2015, regular meeting.   

ADJOURNMENT
Mr. Miller made a motion, seconded by Mr. Geahry, to adjourn the November 18, 2015,
Planning Commission Regular Meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

Jacquelyn A. Rouggie, Recording Secretary


